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)




)
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DECISION
Hannibal Urban City Karr Service, Inc. (“Respondent”) violated 49 CFR § 391.45(a) and (b)(1) five times, § 391.51(a) and (b)(2) once; § 395.8(a) three times; § 396.11(a)(1) three times; and § 396.17(a) and (c) twice.  
Each of those violations is also a violation of a state statute, § 390.063.6.
  Respondent also violated § 390.051.1 ten times.
Procedure

On January 13, 2009, the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“MHTC”) filed a complaint to establish that Respondent violated highway safety laws.  On March 25, 2009, we caused Respondent to be personally served with our notice of complaint/notice of hearing and a copy of the complaint.  Respondent did not respond to the complaint.  On July 17, 2009, the 
MHTC filed a motion for summary decision.  We gave Respondent until August 10, 2009, to respond, but it did not respond.  
Findings of Fact

1.
Respondent is a not-for-profit corporation, whose principal place of business is located at 4 Melgrove Lane, Hannibal, Missouri, 63401.  Respondent sometimes has operated under the registered fictitious name “HUCKS, Inc.” As of December 17, 2008, Respondent’s corporate entity was administratively dissolved or revoked by authority of the Missouri Secretary of State for failure to file a correct and current annual report.  According to its 2007 annual registration report, Respondent’s last president was Stephen Locke, and its last board of directors consisted of Janice Quinlin, Carl White, and Susan Clark, all of Hannibal.
2.
During the events set forth in these findings:

a.
Respondent had no operating authority from the MHTC.
b.
When Respondent operated or authorized the operation of a motor vehicle, the motor vehicle:

i.
was owned, leased, or under the control of Respondent;

ii.
was operated on a public highway;

iii.
was operated only within Missouri; and

iv.
had a seating capacity of seven passengers, including the driver.
c.  Respondent owned, leased, or had under its control the following motor vehicles:

i.
1997 Chevrolet van, assigned Company #101,

ii.
1998 Dodge van, assigned Company #106,

iii.
1999 Dodge van, assigned Company #107,

iv.
1996 Dodge van, assigned Company #108, and
v.
2000 GMC van, assigned Company #109.
d.
Respondent employed as drivers:

i. 
Charles W. Brace, Jr.,
ii.
Mary B. Brown, 

iii.
James P. Conrad,
iv.
John C. Hanauer,

v.
Melvin L. Lange,

vi.
Stephen G. Locke, and
vii.
Janice Y. Quinlin.
Count I
3.
On the following trips, the drivers operated motor vehicles at Respondent’s direction when the drivers had not been medically examined and certified during the preceding 24 months:

a.
On May 4, 2007, Stephen G. Locke operated a 2000 GMC, Company #109, to transport one passenger, Pamela Nickelson, for compensation from Hannibal to Columbia and back to Hannibal.
b.
On July 19, 2007, John C. Hanauer operated a 1999 Dodge van, Company #107, to transport passengers for hire or compensation from one location to another within Hannibal.
c.
On July 23, 2007, Janice Y. Quinlin operated a 1998 Dodge van, Company #106, to transport one passenger, Heather O’Connell, for hire or compensation from New London to Hannibal.

d.
On August 1, 2007, Charles W. Brace, Jr., operated a 1999 Dodge van, Company #107, to transport passengers for hire or compensation from Hannibal to New London.
e.
On August 7, 2007, Stephen G. Locke operated a 2000 GMC van, Company #109, to transport a passenger for hire or compensation from Hannibal to St. Louis.

Count II

4.
On May 3, 2007, Melvin L. Lange operated Respondent's motor vehicle, a 1996 Dodge van assigned Company #108, to transport one passenger, Mary Cartwright, from Hannibal to St. Louis and back to Hannibal, while Respondent failed to maintain responses to inquiries concerning Lange’s driving record in his qualification file.  Respondent provided this transportation for compensation in the amount of $189.60.
Count III

5.
On the following trips, the drivers operated motor vehicles at Respondent’s direction without Respondent requiring them to record their duty status according to the methods prescribed in either 49 CFR 395.8(a)(1) or (2):

a.
On May 21, 2007, Mary B. Brown operated a 1996 Dodge van, Company #108, to transport one passenger, Brandi Gregorian, for compensation from Louisiana to Hannibal.
b.
On August 1, 2007, Charles W. Brace, Jr., operated a 1999 Dodge van, Company #107, to transport one passenger for compensation from Hannibal to New London.
c.
On August 7, 2007, Stephen G. Locke operated a 2000 GMC van, Company #109, to transport one passenger for compensation from Hannibal to St. Louis.

Count IV
6.
On the following trips, the drivers operated motor vehicles at Respondent’s direction without completing the required driver vehicle inspection report for that date:

a.
On May 4, 2007, Stephen G. Locke operated a 2000 GMC van, Company #109, to transport one passenger, Pamela Nickelson, for compensation from Hannibal to Columbia and back to Hannibal.
b.
On July 19, 2007, John C. Hanauer operated a 1999 Dodge van, assigned Company #107, to transport passengers for hire or compensation to and from various locations within Hannibal.
c.
On August 7, 2007, Stephen G. Locke operated a 2000 GMC van, Company #109, to transport one passenger for compensation from Hannibal to St. Louis.

Count V
7.
On the following trips, the drivers operated motor vehicles at Respondent’s direction when the vehicles had not been periodically inspected within the preceding 12 months:
a.
On May 3, 2007, James P. Conrad operated a 1997 Chevrolet van, Company #101, to transport two passengers, Amar Batra and Mark Umbeck, for compensation from Hannibal to St. Louis and back to Hannibal.
b.
On May 17, 2007, Charles W. Brace, Jr., operated a 1999 Dodge van, Company #107, to transport one passenger for compensation from Hannibal to Palmyra.  
Count VI

8.
On the following trips, the drivers operated motor vehicles at Respondent’s direction before Respondent had a certificate issued by the Missouri Department of Transportation (“MoDOT’) in force authorizing that transportation:
a.
On May 3, 2007, Melvin L. Lange operated a 1996 Dodge van, Company #108, to transport one passenger, Mary Cartwright, from Hannibal to St. Louis and then returned her to Hannibal.  Respondent provided this transportation for compensation in the amount of $189.60.
b.
On May 3, 2007, James P. Conrad operated a 1997 Chevrolet van, Company #101, to transport two passengers, Amar Batra and Mark Umbeck, from Hannibal to St. Louis and back to Hannibal.  Respondent provided this transportation for compensation in the amount of $379.20.
c.
On May 4, 2007, Stephen G. Locke operated a 2000 GMC van, Company #109, to transport one passenger, Pamela Nickelson, from Hannibal to Columbia and back to Hannibal.  Respondent provided this transportation for compensation in the amount of $157.60.
d.
On May 17, 2007, Charles W. Brace, Jr., operated a 1999 Dodge van, Company #107, to transport one passenger for hire or compensation from Hannibal to Palmyra.
e.
On May 21, 2007, Mary B. Brown operated a 1996 Dodge van, Company #108, to transport one passenger, Brandi Gregorian, from Louisiana to Hannibal. Respondent provided this transportation for compensation in the amount of $72.00.
f.

On August 1, 2007, Charles W. Brace, Jr., operated a 1999 Dodge van, Company #107, to transport one passenger for hire or compensation from Hannibal to New London.

g.

On August 7, 2007, Stephen G. Locke operated a 2000 GMC van, Company #109, to transport one passenger for hire or compensation from Hannibal to    St. Louis.
h.

On July 23, 2007, Janice Y. Quinlin operated a 1998 Dodge van, Company #106, to transport one passenger, Heather O’Connell, for hire or compensation from New London to Hannibal.
i.

On July 23, 2007, Stephen G. Locke operated a 2000 GMC van, Company #109, to transport one passenger, Barbara Sydnor, from Bowling Green to Troy. Respondent provided this transportation for compensation, including at least a co-pay in the amount of $3.00.
j.
On July 31, 2007, Stephen G. Locke operated a 2000 GMC van, Company #109, to transport passenger Tony Johnson for compensation from New London to Hannibal,
 and to transport passenger Damien McCulley for compensation from New London to Hannibal and back to New London.
Conclusions of Law


We have jurisdiction to hear the MHTC’s complaint.
  The MHTC has the authority to enforce Parts 350 to 399 of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations.
  The MHTC must show by clear and satisfactory evidence that Respondent has violated the law.

Motion for Summary Decision

We may grant the MHTC's motion for summary decision if the MHTC establishes facts that entitle it to a favorable decision and Respondent fails to genuinely dispute such facts.
  The MHTC seeks to establish the allegations in its complaint by submission of affidavits and certified records, including statements of fact signed by Respondent's president.  Respondent neither objected to these submissions nor attempted to dispute the facts set forth in them by any other manner.  The MHTC's submissions constitute “admissible evidence,” as defined in 1 CSR 15-3.466(5)(B), and meet the standard of clear and satisfactory evidence to establish the violations alleged in the complaint.  We make our findings of fact and conclusions of law accordingly.
Merits

Section 390.063.6 provides:
Notwithstanding any provisions of subsection 3 of section 390.030 to the contrary, it is unlawful for any person to operate any motor vehicle having a capacity of more than five passengers, exclusive of the driver, in intrastate commerce or operate any motor vehicle designed to transport more than fifteen passengers, including the driver, in interstate commerce, unless the vehicle is equipped and operated as required by parts 390 through 397, Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as those regulations have been and may periodically be amended.  Those regulations are hereby made applicable to all passenger-carrying motor vehicles having a capacity of more than five passengers, exclusive of the driver, when operated in intrastate commerce, and to all motor vehicles designed to transport more than fifteen passengers, including the driver, when operated in interstate commerce, and the division shall have power and authority to enforce those regulations wholly within terminals, as they apply to those motor vehicles and drivers.
Count I

49 CFR § 391.45 provides:

Except as provided in Sec. 391.67, the following persons must be medically examined and certified in accordance with Sec. 391.43 as physically qualified to operate a commercial motor vehicle:

(a) Any person who has not been medically examined and certified as physically qualified to operate a commercial motor vehicle;

(b)(1) Any driver who has not been medically examined and certified as qualified to operate a commercial motor vehicle during the preceding 24 months[.]
The MHTC’s evidence establishes without dispute the facts alleged in Count I.  Respondent failed to ensure that its drivers were medically examined and certified as required by the above regulation.  Respondent violated 49 CFR § 391.45(a) and (b)(1), and concurrently, § 390.063.6, five times.  
Count II

49 CFR § 391.51 provides:
(a) Each motor carrier shall maintain a driver qualification file for each driver it employs.  A driver's qualification file may be combined with his/her personnel file.

(b) The qualification file for a driver must include:
*   *   *
(2) A copy of the motor vehicle record received from each State pursuant to Sec. 391.23(a)(1)[.]
The MHTC’s evidence establishes without dispute the facts alleged in Count II.  The driver qualification file was not properly maintained.  Respondent violated 49 CFR § 391.51 (b)(2) and, concurrently, § 390.063.6.
Count III


49 CFR §395.8(a) provides:
Except for a private motor carrier of passengers (nonbusiness), every motor carrier shall require every driver used by the motor carrier to record his/her duty status for each 24 hour period using 
the methods prescribed in either paragraph (a)(1) or (2) of this section.
The MHTC’s evidence establishes without dispute the facts alleged in Count III because it failed to record the duty status of its drivers.  Respondent violated 49 CFR § 395.8(a) and, concurrently, § 390.063.6 three times.
Count IV

 
49 CFR § 396.11 provides:
(a) Report required.

Every motor carrier must require its drivers to report, and every driver must prepare a report in writing at the completion of each day's work on each vehicle operated.  The report must cover at least the following parts and accessories: 
--Service brakes including trailer brake connections 
--Parking brake 
--Steering mechanism 
--Lighting devices and reflectors 
--Tires 
--Horn 
--Windshield wipers 
--Rear vision mirrors 
--Coupling devices 
--Wheels and rims 
--Emergency equipment 
*   *   *
(b) Report content.  The report shall identify the vehicle and list any defect or deficiency discovered by or reported to the driver which would affect the safety of operation of the vehicle or result 
in its mechanical breakdown.  If no defect or deficiency is discovered by or reported to the driver, the report shall so indicate. In all instances, the driver shall sign the report.  On two-driver operations, only one driver needs to sign the driver vehicle inspection report, provided both drivers agree as to the defects or deficiencies identified.  If a driver operates more than one vehicle during the day, a report shall be prepared for each vehicle operated.
The MHTC’s evidence establishes without dispute the facts alleged in Count IV.  The drivers failed to complete the required vehicle inspection reports.  Respondent violated 49 CFR 
§ 396.11(a)(1) and, concurrently, § 390.063.6, three times.
Count V


49 CFR § 396.17 provides:

(a) Every commercial motor vehicle must be inspected as required by this section. . . .
*   *   *

(c) A motor carrier must not use a commercial motor vehicle unless each component identified in appendix G of this subchapter has passed an inspection in accordance with the terms of this section at least once during the preceding 12 months and documentation of such inspection is on the vehicle.
The MHTC’s evidence establishes without dispute the facts alleged in Count V.  Respondent failed to have its vehicles periodically inspected.  Respondent twice violated 49 CFR § 396.17(a) and (c) and, concurrently, § 390.063.6.  

Count VI


Section 390.051.1 provides:
Except as otherwise provided in section 390.030, no person shall engage in the business of a common carrier in intrastate commerce on any public highway in this state unless there is in force with respect to such carrier a certificate issued by the division authorizing such operations.
The MHTC’s evidence establishes without dispute the facts alleged in Count VI by engaging in the business of a common carrier in intrastate commerce on ten different occasions and did not have a certificate of authority from the MoDOT.  Respondent violated § 390.051.1 ten times.

SO ORDERED on September 2, 2009.


________________________________



NIMROD T. CHAPEL, JR. 


Commissioner

	�Statutory references are to RSMo 2000, unless otherwise noted.


	�Paragraph 28(j) of the complaint alleges that Tony Johnson’s trip was from Hannibal to New London.  However, two exhibits show that the trip was from one way from New London to Hannibal.  See Ex. 29, the log for July 31, 2007, and Ex. 35, p. 2 of Locke’s “Statement of Facts.”  We interpret the difference between the complaint and the evidence as a typographical error in the complaint that does not rise to the level of depriving Respondent of adequate notice of the charge.


	�Sections 621.040 and 226.008.4, RSMo Supp. 2008.  


	�Section 226.008.2(1), RSMo Supp. 2008, and §§ 390.201 and 622.550.


	�Section 622.350, RSMo Supp. 2008.


	�1 CSR 15-3.446(5)(A).
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